

City of Sunnyvale

Meeting Minutes - Draft Planning Commission

Monday, May 23, 2016 7:00 PM Council Chambers and West Conference

Room, City Hall, 456 W. Olive Ave.,

Sunnyvale, CA 94086

7 P.M. STUDY SESSION

- 1 Call to Order in the West Conference Room
- 2 Roll Call
- 3 Study Session
- A <u>16-0530</u> Overview of Water Resources
- 4 Public Comment on Study Session Agenda Items
- 5 Adjourn Study Session

8 P.M. PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Melton called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers.

SALUTE TO THE FLAG

Chair Melton led the salute to the flag.

ROLL CALL

Present: 7 - Chair Russell Melton Vice Chair Sue Harrison Commissioner Ken Olevson Commissioner Larry Klein Commissioner Ken Rheaume Commissioner David Simons Commissioner Carol Weiss

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

None.

CONSENT CALENDAR

MOTION: Commissioner Klein moved and Vice Chair Harrison seconded the motion to approve the Consent Calendar with modifications to the draft minutes.

The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: 7 - Chair Melton Vice Chair Harrison Commissioner Olevson Commissioner Klein Commissioner Rheaume Commissioner Simons Commissioner Weiss

No: 0

- **1.A** <u>16-0527</u> Approve Planning Commission Meeting Minutes of May 16, 2016
- **RECOMMEND CONTINUANCE TO JUNE 13, 2016** 1.B 16-0114 File #: 2015-7400 Location: 1184 Mathilda Avenue (APNs: 110-25-042, 110-25-49, and 110-25-55) Zoning: Moffett Park Specific Plan Transit Oriented Development (MP-TOD) **Proposed Project:** Related applications on a 19.31-acre site: SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT: to demolish a portion of the existing surface parking and construct a new 248,259 square foot, five story office building over three stories of parking with additional rooftop and underground parking and reconfiguration of the surface parking lots within the existing office campus. Applicant / Owner: FSP-Sunnyvale Office Park, LLC (applicant) /Jeffery Jacobsen, CommonWealth Partners (owner) Environmental Review: Mitigated Negative Declaration Project Planner: Margaret Netto, Project Planner, (408) 730-7628, mnetto@sunnyvale.ca.gov

PUBLIC HEARINGS/GENERAL BUSINESS

2 16-0458 **FILE #**: 2016-7290

Location: 225 S. Taaffe Street (Block 18 of Downtown Specific Plan bounded by Mathilda, Washington, Sunnyvale and Iowa Avenues) **Proposed Project:**

SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT to amend the Final Conditions of Approval for the Sunnyvale Town Center project, including: allowing rental housing units with a ground floor leasing office; allowing temporary parking lot and landscaping improvements at Redwood Square; adding allowable ground floor uses; clarifying the expiration of Special Development Permit design approvals; and updating conditions of approval to meet current City policies and standards pertaining to, but not limited to, public improvements, green building and affordable housing.

Applicant/Owner: STC Venture, LLC (applicant)/REDUS SVTC, LLC (owner)

Environmental Review: No additional environmental review is necessary; the proposed amendments to the Special Development Permit Final Conditions of Approval are within the scope of the previous environmental analysis for the Downtown Program Improvement Update, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15168(c)
(2) and in addition are categorically exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15304 and 15305.
Staff Contact: Hanson Hom, (408) 730-7450, hhom@sunnyvale.ca.gov

Chair Melton inquired if any Planning Commissioners needed to be recused from this item.

Senior Assistant City Attorney Rebecca Moon stated that in accordance with the regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) two Planning Commissioners have conflicts of interest with this project due to the location of real property they own. She said the FPPC allows their participation in implementing decisions about changes to the Town Center project, but does not allow their participation in major policy decisions. She said the Public Hearing to consider the amendments to the Special Development Permit (SDP) can be segmented into two parts, the first relating to a change in the ownership structure of the housing units, and the second related to implementation of the SDP that are not major policy decisions. She said the two Planning Commissioners can recuse themselves for the first segment and that after a decision is made they can return and participate in the second segment.

Commissioner Klein said although he is beyond the 1,000 foot radius of the project, he is recusing himself from the first segment of this item.

Chair Melton confirmed with Commissioner Klein that he would be leaving the Council Chambers and returning for the second segment of this item.

Commissioner Rheaume recused himself from the first segment of this item and said he would return for the second segment.

Chair Melton confirmed with Commissioner Rheaume that he would not be speaking as a member of the public during consideration of the first segment.

Assistant City Manager Hanson Hom provided information about the proposed project.

Vice Chair Harrison confirmed with Mr. Hom that the wellness areas of the conceptual site plan are residential amenities spaces, and discussed why the project was originally restricted to ownership housing. Vice Chair Harrison verified with Mr. Hom that the change from ownership to rental units applies to all 292 units as currently drafted and that the amendment would give the developer the option of developing the remaining 96 units as rental or for sale.

Commissioner Olevson confirmed with Mr. Hom that the City has a standard housing agreement with provisions for projects with a map filed if the projects are converted to condominiums in the future, and confirmed that the recreation facilities proposed on the first floor could be available to the general public or for residents only. Commissioner Olevson discussed with staff the number of assigned and unassigned parking spaces required for the project.

Commissioner Weiss confirmed with Mr. Hom that there is no time frame for when the developer might convert the rental units to condominiums, but that there is a standard for notification of rental tenants.

Chair Melton referred to the staff report and confirmed with Mr. Hom that items A-E are changes requested by the applicant and F-I are items the City is asking for both to modernize the agreement. Chair Melton confirmed with staff that CEQA findings would need to be split into segments.

Chair Melton opened the Public Hearing for segment one.

Applicants Dave Hopkins, with Sares-Regis, and Deke Hunter, with Hunter Properties, provided information about the proposed project.

Vice Chair Harrison confirmed with Mr. Hopkins that the apartment community will have the same number of units as the existing entitlements with 12.5 percent at a low income level for 55 years.

Commissioner Simons verified with Mr. Hopkins that the amendment to provide rental rather than ownership units is requested so home owners would not have to deal with the potential issues that may arise from the buildings having sat untouched for so long.

Kristie Moolenaar, Carroll Street resident, said she prefers for sale units, and discussed her concern with the leasing office taking up two thirds of retail space, the restriction of wellness spaces for residents only and the loss of green space on the south side of the Target parking lot.

Maria Pan discussed her concern with changing the housing to rental only.

Stan Hendryx, Sunnyvale resident, said he appreciates the rental BMR units, discussed the need for low income housing in Sunnyvale and said it is a good idea to rent the units until any potential issues with the building are addressed.

Mr. Hopkins addressed the concerns of the residents and provided additional information about the project.

Vice Chair Harrison confirmed with Mr. Hopkins and Assistant City Manager Hom that the interior finishes of the BMR units would be comparable to those in the market rate units.

Commissioner Simons verified with Mr. Hopkins that he would not be obtaining an insurance policy on the existing buildings.

Chair Melton closed the Public Hearing for segment one.

Chair Melton confirmed with Mr. Hom that there is a policy in the General Plan requiring a balance of ownership and rental housing, and that the latest statistics show a near 50 percent split.

Vice Chair Harrison discussed with Mr. Hom whether there will be green space or residential units to the southwest of Target. Mr. Hom said it will need to be confirmed.

MOTION: Vice Chair Harrison moved and Commissioner Olevson seconded the motion for Alternative 1 as it specifies for segment one: Find that the proposed amendments to the Special Development Permit Final Conditions of Approval for the Sunnyvale Town Center project are categorically exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15304 and 15305 and in addition that no additional environmental review is necessary as the proposed amendments are within the scope of the previous environmental analysis for the Downtown Program

Improvement Update, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15168(c)(2), subject to the findings in Attachment 7, and approve the findings and Amended Final Conditions of Approval pursuant to Attachments 8 and 9.

Vice Chair Harrison said she understands the applicant's predicament with regard to the conditions of the buildings and that she appreciates the provision of affordable housing for low income residents. She said she understands the request for flexibility and the difficulty of committing to what the townhouses may be when they will not be developed for another five years, but she encouraged ownership housing.

Commissioner Olevson said he appreciates and supports the need for ownership housing, but the reality is that we need more housing now. He said he appreciates the new developer changing the units to rental to get them up and running rather than waiting years to find out what condition the existing structure is in and then looking at sales. He said he supports the rental concept and is pleased that the BMR units will be comparable to the market rate units.

Commissioner Simons said he is not supporting the motion, and said the desire for positive housing ownership over rental remains. He said no housing is being generated one way or another, that the units will be built whether for rent or sale and there is no difference in the number of units. He said he understands the need for flexibility but the developer will do their due diligence regardless of whether units are for sale or rent, and that building conditions were taken into account when the project was taken on. He said the loss of retail space on the street is not desirable, and that downtown needs street space to make it a friendly space. He said there are already long structures on Washington without windows, and that we need places people walking through town can go to and participate in and that this detracts from that. He said we already have rental housing downtown and he does not see the modification as a benefit to the City.

Commissioner Weiss said she appreciates that the developer is taking over a very challenging situation and will be turning it around. She said she has every expectation the result will be a very positive one and that the variety of flexibility built into the project will serve us all very well. She noted that the plans include a first class grocery store and multiplex cinema and said she is heartened by the inclusion of BMR units and that we are finally recognizing this as something that should be part of our core values.

Chair Melton said he is supporting the motion, and that we have a policy for a balance of ownership and rental housing and he does not see any data indicating

that balance is so skewed that we need to mandate that the developer go one way or another. He stated that he can make findings.

The motion carried by the following vote:

- Yes: 4 Chair Melton Vice Chair Harrison Commissioner Olevson Commissioner Weiss
- No: 1 Commissioner Simons
- Recused: 2 Commissioner Klein Commissioner Rheaume

Planning Officer Miner announced that this decision is final unless appealed to, or called up for review by the City Council within 15 days.

Commissioners Klein and Rheaume returned to the Council Chambers.

Assistant City Manager Hanson Hom noted that previous plans show townhouses in the area to the southwest of Target and current plans show it as green space. He said he would have to research the change and bring that information back to the Planning Commission. Mr. Hom presented the staff report for segment two.

Commissioner Klein and Mr. Hom discussed the proposed number of parking spaces and Mr. Hom said it is not a firm number and there is a Condition of Approval (COA) that requires 50 percent of the Redwood Square area be for landscaping improvements. Commissioner Klein discussed with Mr. Hom adding Class II bicycle parking to Redwood Square, and discussed why a Miscellaneous Plan Permit (MPP) is required for ground floor recreational facilities greater than 7,500 square feet on Aries Way.

Commissioner Rheaume verified with Mr. Hom that the Special Development Permit includes extending south Murphy from Washington to McKinley and that it would coincide with the construction of the movie theater. Commissioner Rheaume confirmed with Mr. Hom that the unused parking structure would be completed along with the theater, and that the applicant is proposing 100 parking spaces in Redwood Square.

Commissioner Weiss verified with Mr. Hom that the MPP time period for the temporary parking lot at Redwood Square could be extended if decided by the Planning Commission and discussed why reclaimed water would not be used for irrigation. Commissioner Weiss clarified with Mr. Hom what twinkle lights are as

specified in the COAs, and discussed the requirement for the developer to pay a fair share of the cost for transportation improvements at a Cupertino intersection, which this project would impact.

Commissioner Olevson referred to a previously considered project and noted that mitigation was not required for traffic impacts at the intersection of Benton and Lawrence, and he discussed with staff why the developer is required to pay for improvements at a Cupertino intersection that is out of our jurisdiction. Commissioner Olevson discussed with Mr. Hom why another alternative for the second level retail space was not considered if it could be challenging to attract tenants to the second floor. Commissioner Olevson discussed with Mr. Hom the risk of introducing smart technology into the project that could potentially become obsolete in several years. Commissioner Olevson clarified with Mr. Hom the credit owed to the project developer for previously paid impact fees, and confirmed the location of pedestrian bridges.

Vice Chair Harrison confirmed with Mr. Hom that the payment to the developer of tax increment financing is not an amendment related to the SDP and means the developer would not be eligible for future Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) payments. Vice Chair Harrison verified with Mr. Hom that the developer would be eligible for a park dedication credit if Redwood Square is dedicated to the City as park space in the future and that the developer has already played the park in-lieu fee for 198 dwelling units.

Chair Melton opened the Public Hearing for segment two.

Applicant Deke Hunter presented information about the application.

Commissioner Simons discussed with Mr. Hunter whether Macy's and Target are amenable to the plans for Redwood Square and if the proposed improvements are intended to be permanent.

Commissioner Klein discussed with Mr. Hunter whether a driveway through Redwood Square is a requirement and other options for traffic into the area, and clarified with Mr. Hopkins that construction of Block 6 has not been considered along with the completion of construction of the Murphy Avenue extension. Commissioner Klein also clarified with Mr. Hunter the upgrade to and construction of Block 5 and the existing parking structure.

Commissioner Rheaume discussed with Mr. Hunter the issues that would be alleviated by the temporary parking in Redwood Square, and confirmed that the

legal agreement between the developer and Macy's and Target is to remove the current structure and replace it with landscaping and parking. Commissioner Rheaume commented on the mulch and asphalt proposed in Redwood Square being inferior improvements, to which Mr. Hunter responded that they are temporary. Commissioner Rheaume confirmed with Mr. Hunter that he would be amenable to adding benches along Redwood Square.

Vice Chair Harrison discussed with Mr. Hunter whether 1,200 square feet is large enough for a fitness center, and verified with Mr. Hom that the developer would need to submit bicycle parking plans that meet current VTA standards.

Stan Hendryx, Sunnyvale resident, said extensive public outreach has demonstrated a desire for a community activity center open to the general public located downtown.

Applicant Dave Hopkins provided additional comments about the proposed project.

Chair Melton closed the Public Hearing for segment two.

Commissioner Klein discussed with Mr. Hom whether a community activity center current is feasible and confirmed that if one is over 3,000 square feet it would require a MPP.

Commissioner Simons discussed with Mr. Hom if consideration was given to using the second story retail for a recreation space.

Commissioner Rheaume disclosed that he met with the applicant.

MOTION: Commissioner Klein moved and Commissioner Simons seconded the motion for Alternative 2 as specified for segment two: Find that the proposed amendments to the Special Development Permit Final Conditions of Approval for the Sunnyvale Town Center project are exempt from environmental review, subject to the findings in Attachment 7, and approve the findings and Amended Final Conditions of Approval pursuant to Attachments 8 and 9 with modifications: 1) For COA G10.d.4f remove the requirement of MPP approval for ground floor recreational facilities open to the public with individual location greater than 7,500 square feet along Aries Way;

2) Add to COA G10.d.4f the concept of an education-recreation and enrichment area, that over 3,000 square feet would require a MPP; and,

3) Regarding Redwood Square: reduce the number of parking spaces to 50; remove the passthrough driveway to have two parking areas of 25 spaces with

the final design approved by the Director of Community Development; add benches along Taaffe and Murphy; and, add Class I and Class II bicycle parking spaces with direction from staff as to the number of spaces.

Commissioner Klein disclosed that he met with the developer, and said it was disheartening to see Redwood Square sit half completed when the downturn occurred and that it was difficult to see all the effort to create a good design go away. He said he looks forward to the additional retail which would generate more sales tax dollars, and noted that we are trying to ensure we have something that can quickly take shape for residential and retail. He said it is important to add Redwood Square and the cinema to the list of amusement and leisure spaces in the City, and said even with reduced parking in Redwood Square it is still a destination location. He said as the rest of the project opens and Murphy is extended there will be other places to provide temporary parking and that he worries that creating a driveway and parking there now would make it harder to change in the future.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENTS: Commissioner Simons offered a friendly amendment to specify that there be a minimum of six Class I and 24 Class II bicycle parking spaces. Commissioner Klein accepted.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENTS: Commissioner Simons offered a friendly amendment to add a review period of five years to determine obsolescence of any installed smart technology, to be reviewed by the Director of Community Development. Commissioner Klein accepted.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENTS: Commissioner Simons offered a friendly amendment to require that any new landscaping for trees be native large species trees appropriate for the local plant zone. Commissioner Klein accepted.

Commissioner Simons said he supports the motion and can make the findings. He said his main concern with Redwood Square was that the temporary improvements would become so functional that they become a disincentive to move forward on it. He said he is concerned with how this project will be completed block by block, but he is supporting this project with the expectation that short term improvements will be completed quickly and he is hoping that the project can get up and moving. He said he is hoping the housing along the sides will be completed in a short amount of time.

Commissioner Rheaume said he is supporting the motion and can make the findings. He said he agrees with the modifications to Redwood Square, but that

ideally he would prefer no parking there. He said he appreciates that the applicant is moving forward on the downtown area and that he is anxious about getting this done, but he wants to make sure we are doing a quality job. He said he hopes consideration is given to making Redwood Square an area where people can walk through and enjoy.

Commissioner Olevson said he is supporting the motion, and that generally he does not prefer to approve a project before everything is completed, but that in this case we have been waiting many years to achieve that. He said he appreciates the risk the developer is taking by restructuring a partially completed project, and that the developer has worked with the City in the past and shown a reputation for quality construction while living up to the intent of our agreements and not just the law.

Commissioner Weiss said she is supporting the motion and can make the findings. She said the COAs take into account the existing situation and represent serious and thoughtful discussion between the developer and staff. She said she likes the added modifications which strengthen the proposal, and that everyone in Sunnyvale has been waiting a long time for forward motion on the downtown plan.

Chair Melton said he will be supporting the motion and can make the findings.

- Yes: 7 Chair Melton
 - Vice Chair Harrison Commissioner Olevson Commissioner Klein Commissioner Rheaume Commissioner Simons Commissioner Weiss

No: 0

Planning Officer Miner announced that this decision is final unless appealed to, or called up for review by the City Council within 15 days.

3 <u>16-0529</u> File #: 2013-7653 Location: Peery Park District Area Applicant: City of Sunnyvale Proposed Project: PUBLIC COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND DRAFT PEERY PARK SPECIFIC PLAN for the Peery Park Specific Plan. Project Planner: Amber Blizinski, (408) 730-2723, ablizinski@sunnyvale.ca.gov Principal Planner Amber Blizinski provided an overview of the project and the purpose of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR). She said this Public Hearing is for members of the public and the Planning Commission to provide comments on the DEIR and the Draft Peery Park Specific Plan (PPSP).

Chair Melton opened the Public Hearing.

Ann Davis, Sunnyvale resident, said the plan to put pedestrian openings in the wall behind Pine Avenue on the east side would rip out trees and increase noise. She discussed her concern with crime in the area and requested hiring a landscape architect to enhance the appearance at Mathilda.

Jay Patel, owner of the Best Western on Mathilda, said the proposed pedestrian pathway will separate the two buildings comprising the hotel. He said the pathway will also decrease parking, increase crime, and that residents coming through on the pathway will frighten guests.

Sharon McKnight, SNAIL neighborhood resident, said she will provide a petition from neighbors who are against creating a pathway through the wall, and said the opening in the wall would diminish their privacy and security.

Dwight Davis, Sunnyvale resident, spoke against opening the walls for a pathway and discussed his concern with crime and increased parking in the neighborhood and requested screening the buildings with landscaping.

David King, Sunnyvale resident, requested the Planning Commission recommend removing the two proposed pedestrian and bicycle connections from the DEIR and Draft PPSP, and discussed his concern with crime in the area.

Sue Serrone, Sunnyvale resident, said the analysis of Alternative 2 for mixed use should be reconsidered and recommended and that the policy goal of creating more employment should be changed. She noted that there is an imbalance between jobs and housing in Sunnyvale and said more housing is needed.

Stan Hendryx, Sunnyvale resident, said several upcoming projects will create thousands of jobs for people who cannot afford to live in Sunnyvale which will increase commuting traffic and greenhouse gas emissions. He requested the reports be amended to include the impact of greenhouse gas emissions from commuting vehicles and the impact these projects will have on much needed housing and their mitigations. Vice Chair Harrison said the DEIR is adequate to address environmental impacts, but that she strongly encourages the consideration of the mixed use housing alternative as opposed to the project alternative. She said with the projects in the pipeline Sunnyvale will be overbuilt for office for ten years, and noted that the environmental impact of the mixed use housing alternative is similar to that of the proposed project.

Commissioner Simons said the DEIR gives decision making bodies tools for mitigation of environmental impacts and that evaluating varied TDM requirements help us understand the impacts of projects on traffic and pollution should be done during the review of the EIR.

Commissioner Weiss said not enough attention was given to Mellows Nursery in the study, which could help mitigate the increase in greenhouse gas emissions if the site was used as green space. She said she is disturbed that with all construction there will only be 215 housing units, that live-work villages have been overlooked and would be a much more balanced and holistic approach to planning a community. She said she sympathizes with the neighbors who spoke about creating a pathway through the existing wall and that more attention should be given to the risks entailed by having it. She said Alternative 2 seems to go further in the direction of a holistic community.

Commissioner Olevson noted that comments on page ES-32 and ES-33 discuss the growth of Peery Park impacting major thoroughfares and inadequately justifies how improvements at intersections in Morgan Hill and Redwood City would have a positive impact in Sunnyvale. He requested the EIR justify how helping someone in the north and part of the county will help Sunnyvale.

Chair Melton closed this agenda item.

4	<u>16-0132</u>	File #: 2015-7275
		Location: 1111 Lockheed Martin Way (APNs: 110-01-036 and
		110-01-038)
		Proposed Project: Discussion and possible actions on:
		MAJOR MOFFETT PARK SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT
		to demolish existing buildings and construct five eight-story
		buildings, two four-story parking structures, one-five-story
		parking structure and a two-story amenities building resulting in
		approximately 1.65 million square feet of office use.
		DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT Introduction of an Ordinance
		Approving and Adopting a Development Agreement between
		the City of Sunnyvale and MT II LLC (Jay Paul Company)
		Environmental Review: A Subsequent Environmental Impact Report
		(SEIR) has been prepared in compliance with California

Environmental Quality Act provisions and City Guidelines. **Applicant / Owner:** MT II, LLC (Jay Paul Company) **Staff Contact:** Margaret Netto, 408-730-7628, mnetto@sunnyvale.ca.gov

Project Planner Margaret Netto presented the staff report.

Commissioner Klein confirmed with Ms. Netto that the rooftop amenities are optional because staff believes tenants are likely to utilize them more at ground level.

Vice Chair Harrison confirmed with Ms. Netto that the minimum parking lot shading percentage would be met, and confirmed with Planning Officer Andrew Miner that the conditions require any interior tenant improvements to meet current LEED platinum requirements, but that they may not meet the next version of LEED platinum.

Commissioner Olevson noted that Attachment 6 incorrectly states that the Planning Commission met on March 28 to consider the EIR for this project. Planning Officer Miner noted that the hearing took place on April 22 and that staff would make that correction to the document.

Commissioner Weiss discussed including charter buses in the TDM, whether to add a condition to require the use of pervious paving used wherever possible to minimize runoff and whether photovoltaic-generated or solar energy would be used on the roof of the building.

Commissioner Simons confirmed with staff the width of the proposed public sidewalks and that bicyclists will share paths with pedestrians and that staff is amenable to dedicating more space for bicyclists and pedestrians between 5th Street and 11th Avenue. Commissioner Simons discussed encouraging the integration of artwork into the buildings and confirmed that staff is amenable to adding a condition for a wayfinding system in the signage plan, and that the project will have to comply with requirements to keep stormwater onsite. Ms. Netto noted that the data table incorrectly lists the proposed pervious surface percentage as impervious.

Chair Melton confirmed with Ms. Netto that the term of the Development Agreement is 15 years with one potential renewal period of five years. Chair Melton commented on his concern that the wording of the Agreement could potentially provide a loop providing the applicant multiple five year extensions and he asked staff to double check whether the document clearly states its objective regarding the term. Chair Melton opened the Public Hearing.

Applicants Janette D'Elia, with Jay Paul, and Tom Gilman, with DES Architects, provided information about the project application.

Commissioner Weiss confirmed with Ms. D'Elia that one percent of power for the amenities building will come from photovoltaics, and that the recycled content materials used for construction will come from the existing building.

Applicants Janette D'Elia and Tom Gilman provided additional information about the project.

Chair Melton closed the Public Hearing.

MOTION: Commissioner Simons moved Alternatives 1, 3, and 5: Make the Findings required by CEQA, Adopt a Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation Monitoring Program as contained in Attachment 8; Approve the Major Moffett Park Special Development Permit with modified conditions

of approval; and, Introduce an ordinance approving and adopting a Development Agreement between the City of Sunnyvale and Moffett Towers II, LLC (Jay Paul Company) as contained in findings for approval in Attachment 5 of the report and Draft Ordinance in Attachment 6 of the report:

1) Modify BP-12 to require that any new landscaping for trees be native large species trees appropriate for the local plant zone and to consider recycled water for irrigation;

2) Separate the bicycle and pedestrian pathway with ten feet for two bike lanes and eight feet for a pedestrian pathway;

3) Add to BP-28, as proposed by staff, to require future tenant improvements to meet current LEED Platinum level;

4) Encourage staff and the applicant to include the green rooftop;

5) For BP-11 encourage staff, the Arts Commission and the applicant to consider integrating artwork into the buildings;

6) For BP-25 increase the bicycle parking 25 percent;

7) Add a dedicated wayfinding system to the signage plan for the main pedestrian pathway with direction to the closest light rail stations; and,

8) Use pervious concrete and asphalt on roads and paths as appropriate.

Planning Officer Miner clarified the modification that would separate the bicycle and pedestrian pathway with Commissioner Simons, and Mr. Miner noted that there are no dedicated bike lanes on site. Commissioner Simons withdrew modification 2.

The motion died for lack of a second.

MOTION: Commissioner Simons moved and Commissioner Rheaume seconded the motion for Alternatives 1, 3, and 5. Make the Findings required by CEQA, Adopt a Statement of Overriding Considerations and Mitigation Monitoring Program as contained in Attachment 8; Approve the Major Moffett Park Special Development Permit with modified findings or conditions of approval; and, Introduce an ordinance approving and adopting a Development Agreement between the City of Sunnyvale and Moffett Towers II, LLC (Jay Paul Company) as contained in findings for approval in Attachment 5 of the report and Draft Ordinance in Attachment 6 of the report.

1) Require that any new landscaping for trees be native large species trees appropriate for the local plant zone;

2) Add to BP-28 as proposed by staff to require future tenant improvements to meet current LEED Platinum level;

3) Encourage roof top green space;

4) Encourage the Integration of artwork into the building construction throughout the campus;

5) For BP-25 increase the bicycle parking 25 percent;

6) Use of pervious concrete and asphalt for the hardscape around the project.

Commissioner Simons noted that he would be amenable to increasing the TDM level, and said the modifications are in keeping with building world class amenities for the kinds of companies Silicon Valley is known for.

Commissioner Rheaume said he supports the motion and can make the findings. He said this is a great spot for high density commercial space and commended the applicant for the percentage of green space proposed in this urban forest and for saving and replanting many onsite trees.

Commissioner Klein said he supports the motion and can make the findings. He said he likes the vision for the project and for the landscaping, and that he is overwhelmed by the number of trees that are proposed for relocation. He said some trees are very impressive and he hopes the applicant can relocate as many as possible to maintain the urban forest.

Commissioner Olevson said he supports the project and can make the findings. He said parts of the area are not considered first class and he is pleased that it will be transformed.

Commissioner Weiss commended the applicant for greatly improving the

appearance of the buildings and making them more architecturally diverse and interesting as seen from different parts of the business campus and highways. She also commended the applicant for reaching LEED platinum and increasing the green open space.

FRIENDLY AMENDMENT: Vice Chair Harrison offered a friendly amendment to require the use of pervious concrete unless it decreases the LEED points. Commissioners Simons and Rheaume accepted.

Vice Chair Harrison said she supports the motion and can make the findings. She said the buildings are very pretty and she appreciates the variety and consistency. She said she loves the forest park and thanked the applicant for considering native trees tolerant of recycled water.

Planning Officer Miner clarified the motion with Chair Melton.

Chair Melton said he supports the motion and can make the findings. He said the Development Agreement and the funds that will help with traffic under 237 and Mathilda will be great projects for Sunnyvale.

The motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: 7 - Chair Melton Vice Chair Harrison Commissioner Olevson Commissioner Klein Commissioner Rheaume Commissioner Simons Commissioner Weiss

No: 0

5 <u>16-0531</u> Review Planning Program Budget and Fees for FY 2016-17

Commissioner Olevson moved to continue the item to the next regularly scheduled meeting. Comm. Simons seconded.

Motion carried by the following vote:

Yes: 4 - Commissioner Olevson Commissioner Rheaume Commissioner Simons Commissioner Weiss

No: 3 - Chair Melton Vice Chair Harrison Commissioner Klein

STANDING ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF POTENTIAL STUDY ISSUES

None.

NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND COMMENTS

-Commissioner Comments

Vice Chair Harrison requested a study session regarding TDM because she has some confusion about what the report compares in terms of trip generation and driveway count.

Chair Melton said he would send a communication to the Mayor regarding the continuance of the budget item.

-Staff Comments

Planning Officer Miner discussed upcoming and recently considered Planning-related items.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Melton adjourned the meeting at 12:30 a.m.